
 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
 

Tuesday, 6 July 2021 
 
 

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Wednesday, 14 July 2021 
beginning at 

7:00 pm 
in the 

Velmore Community Centre, Falkland Road, Chandlers Ford 

 
 
TO: Councillor James Duguid (Chair) 
 Councillor Alan Broadhurst (Vice-Chair) 
  

Councillor Anne Buckley 
Councillor Tim Groves 
 

Councillor Judith Grajewski 
Councillor David Pragnell 
 

 
 

Staff Contacts: Catherine Collins, Democratic Services Officer, 
catherine.collins@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

 Ross McClean, Local Area Manager, Tel: 023 8068 3367; Email: 
ross.mcclean@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 

JOANNE CASSAR 
Executive Head of Governance 

 

 
Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website  
as well as in other formats. 

 
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting, 
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To register please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer above. 
 
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording and 
photography at meetings open to the public, and Councillors will be using tablet devices to 
access committee papers. 
 

1

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

1.   Minutes (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 March 2021. 
 

2.   Apologies  
 

3.   Declarations of Interest  
 
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 
 

4.   Public Participation  
 
Public seating will be limited at this meeting due to the current Government 
restrictions. You can submit questions in advance of the meeting to the following 
email: democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk. The deadline for submissions is 
midday on Tuesday 13 July 2021. Please let us know if you wish to attend the 
meeting in person so that we can manage numbers. 
 

5.   Chair's report  
 

6.   Financial Management Report (Pages 11 - 16) 
 

7.   Appointments to Outside Bodies, Regulatory Panels and Other Groups (Pages 
17 - 24) 
 

8.   Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) -  Various Roads in Chandler's Ford & Hiltingbury 
(Pages 25 - 42) 
 

9.   Presentation on Planning Guidelines  
 

10.   Planning Application - 21 Grosvenor Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 
5BU (Pages 43 - 50) 
 
Raising roof height and side extension incorporating an integral garage to provide 
height and area for first floor accommodation following demolition of existing 
detached garage. (Ref: H/21/90408) 
 
 

11.   Planning Appeals  
 
The Head of Legal to report:- 
 
(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:- 

 
2 PINE ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD, EASTLEIGH, SO53 1LP 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of raising of roof to provide first floor 
living accommodation, two and single storey first floor side and rear 
extensions. (H/20/87640) 

2

mailto:democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk


 

 
47 PARK ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD, EASTLEIGH, SO53 2ET 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of loft conversion and raising of rear 
eaves and ridge with front and rear dormers. (H/21/89622) 
This was a delegated decision. 
  

FIVE PINES, PINE ROAD, CHANDLER’S FORD, EASTLEIGH, SO53 1LF 
 

Appeal against the Council’s refusal of two storey front/side extension, new 
entrance porch and alterations to fenestration. (H/20/89205) 
 

This was a delegated decision. 
 

(b) that the following appeals have been dismissed:- 
 
18 VERONA ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD, EASTLEIGH, SO53 2BZ  
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal for an increase of roof ridge height, 
rear dormers and front roof lights. (H/20/88683) 
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 
9 WESTFIELD ROAD, CHANDLERS FORD, EASTLEIGH, SO53 3GT 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal for erection of 1 no. 2 bedroom 
detached dwelling to the side of 9 Westfield Road, Chandlers Ford, 
Hampshire, SO53 3GT, including drop kerb. Demolition of existing store 
and erection of side extension to 9 Westfield Road. (F/20/87442) 
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 
16 KEBLE ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD, EASTLEIGH, SO53 3DS 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal for is erection of 4no. four-bedroom 
detached dwellings with associated garages and hard and soft landscaping 
following demolition of existing bungalow. (F/19/85922) 
 
140 HILTINGBURY ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD, EASTLEIGH, SO53 
5NS 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal for a small single storey detached 
garage, cycle and bin storage. (H/20/89117) 
 
The costs were refused. 
 
This was a delegated decision. 

 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Wednesday, 15 September 2021 at 7:00 pm 
In the Velmore Community Centre, Falkland 

Road, Chandlers Ford 
 

3



 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 
 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates 
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus 
lots more.  
 

4

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1 
 

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 23 March 2021  (7:00 pm – 9:03 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Broadhurst Chair; Councillors Groves, Atkinson, Grajewski, 
Pragnell and Duguid 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

98. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Groves declared a pecuniary interest in item 10 on the Financial 
Management Report (Agenda item 6) as he has supported and organised 
events for Wessex Cancer Trust in the past, he has no other involvement 
and would be able to take part in debate and vote on the item. 
 
Councillor Grajewski noted that in her role as a councillor for Hampshire 
County Council she has given grants to Wessex Cancer Trust, but she had 
no interest or pecuniary interest and therefore could take part in debate 
and vote on the item. 
 
Councillor Pragnell declared a non-pecuniary interest and did not take part 
in item 8 as he is a neighbour of the applicant. 
 
Councillor Atkinson noted that several councillors were also parish 
councillors and requested this be recorded under financial monitoring. 
 

99. MINUTES 
 
Councillor Groves requested that the minutes of the meeting on 13 
January 2021 be amended to say that ‘Councillor Groves withdrew from 
recommendation 2’, this was because the information reported in the 
minutes was incorrect. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the amended Minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 2021 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

100. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation on this occasion. 

5

Agenda Item 1



2 
 

 
 

101. CHAIR'S REPORT 
 
The Chair reminded councillors that the pre-election period (Purdah) had 
commenced on Monday 22 March 2021 and requested mindfulness and 
respect for the rules that surrounded this. 
 
The Chair remembered with sorrow the anniversary of the start of the first 
lockdown and agreed with Councillor Atkinson that a two minute break 
would be held at 8pm so that councillors, officers and members of the 
public could join in with the candlelight vigil. 
 
The Chair wished everyone a safe, happy and healthy Easter and asked 
that we all continue to take care. 
 
The Chair reported that, where possible, Council staff were still working 
from home and many buildings remained closed until it was safe for them 
to open. Staff were once again thanked our staff for their efforts to 
maintain services under difficult conditions, especially those involved with 
the waste and litter collection.  
 
The Chair mentioned that people were starting to look forward to being 
able to visit family members, both locally and further away. He asked that 
people kept to respecting social distancing, mask wearing and hand 
washing rules before the virus was under control to the extent where it was 
safe to travel. 
 
The Chair asked for patience as he reported that work at Hiltingbury lakes 
had been badly affected by the pandemic, which had caused delays, and 
that it was not clear when the remaining work would be completed.  
 
The Chair reported that feasibility studies would take place to decide what 
work would be undertaken at Flexford Mead Nature Reserve. Network Rail 
had decided that some urgent work to fell dangerous trees was needed to 
ensure safety of the trains using the line which passes through the 
reserve. Contractors employed by Network Rail would undertake the work. 
 
The Chair reminded people that if they did need to contact the Council, the 
phone lines were open and manned. 
 
 

102. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 
The Committee considered a report by the Local Area Manager (Agenda 
Item 6) setting out recommendations for expenditure from the Committee’s 
revenue budget and developer contributions. 
 

6



3 
 

Councillor Atkinson requested that the report be noted that the cost of 
funding youth provision for Fryern Youth should be funded out of the 
revenue budget and not from reserves.   
 
Councillor Atkinson proposed amendments to recommendations 1 and 5 
as set out below. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
It was recommended that: 
 
(1) £13,074 was allocated to Flexford Nature Reserve to include a 

feasibility study, footpaths improvements and riverbank 
protection from developer contributions, subject to clarification 
provided from finance of what is capital expenditure and what 
is revenue expenditure for the improvements to ensure that 
developers contributions are used correctly (amended). 

(2) £10,000 was allocated for improvements to Hiltingbury 
Recreation Ground Car Park (to the parish) from developer 
contributions. 

(3) £2,100 was allocated to implement three cycle parking shelters 
from developer contributions. 

(4) £19,652 was allocated to create two access paths which 
connect to an existing path to provide safer walking access to 
schools and greater accessibility to amenities from the Pine 
Road area from developer contributions 

(5) £1,982 was allocated to repair or improve identified benches, or 
provide new benches, from developer contributions (amended). 

(6) £2,000 was allocated to bin replacements from developer 
contributions. 

(7) £13,000 was allocated to play area improvements at Hut Farm 
Place, Fryern play area, Mead Road play area Hiltingbury play 
area from developer contributions. 

(8) £5,154 was allocated to the delivery of public art projects from 
developer contributions. 

(9) The Committee approved the Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury 
(CFH) Local Area Action Plan 2021/22 shown in Appendix 1 for 
adoption and publication. 

(10) £384 was allocated for the provision of an online emotional 
support programme for people affected by cancer, delivered by 
Wessex Cancer Trust. This will be funded from an annual 
revenue budget that CFH has allocated for community grants. 

7

file://///ebc01-101/users/Legal%20&amp;%20Democratic%20Services/Democratic%20Services/COMADMIN/CFH/2021-2022/23.03.21/Finance%20report%20CFH%20LAC_v1.docx%23Recommendation


4 
 

(11) The Committee noted the current and 2021/22 revenue budget 
position as shown at Appendix 2 and the current Chandlers 
Ford LAC reserves. 

 
(NOTES: Councillor Groves declared a pecuniary interest in item 10 on the 
Financial Management Report (Agenda item 6) as he has supported and 
organised events for Wessex Cancer Trust in the past, he has no other 
involvement and would be able to take part in debate and vote on the item. 
 
Councillor Grajewski noted that in her role as a councillor for Hampshire 
County Council she has given grants to Wessex Cancer Trust, but she had 
no interest or pecuniary interest and therefore could take part in debate 
and vote on the item. 
 
Councillor Atkinson noted that several councillors were also parish 
councillors and requested this be recorded under financial monitoring.) 
 
 

103. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES 
 
The Development Management Principal Planning Officer gave a short 
presentation on guidelines that had to be taken into account when 
determining planning applications; in particular the issues that could, and 
could not, be taken into account.  This was set against the broader policy 
framework. 
 

104. PLANNING APPLICATION - 23 KINGSWAY, CHANDLER'S FORD, 
EASTLEIGH, SO53 2FG 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Development Management 
Planning Officer (Agenda item 8) concerning an application for a side and 
rear extension and loft conversion with front and side dormers and 
rooflights at 23 Kingsway, Chandler’s Ford, Eastleigh SO53 2FG. 
(Ref:H/20/89407). 
 
The Committee was updated as follows: 
 

• Addition of informative recommended to confirm that the granting of 
planning permission does not grant permission to encroach onto 
land outside the ownership of the applicant without the consent of 
the land owner. 

 
RESOLVED - 
 
That (amended) permission be GRANTED as per the committee 
report, with the addition of the recommended informative and a 
further informative highlighting the requirement for no pavement 
parking; and conditions requiring the submission and approval of 
details of permeable surfacing for the car parking area; no 

8



5 
 

construction-related deliveries during term-time school drop off/pick 
up times; no burning of materials on site; and no driven piling.  
 
(NOTES: Councillor Pragnell declared a non-pecuniary interest and did not 
take part in this item as he is a neighbour of the applicant. 
 
One resident spoke in objection to the application, citing concerns around 
overshadowing from the planned extension, light reduction, parking and 
overlooking from the windows made worse as the house is on higher 
ground. 
 
The Committee suspended the meeting at 8pm for 3 minutes to allow 
councillors, officers and members of the public to take part in the 
candlelight vigil for those who lost their lives due to the pandemic – the 
meeting resumed at 20.04). 
 
 

105. PLANNING APPLICATION - WOODLAND TO THE REAR OF 47 
KELBURN CLOSE, CHANDLERS FORD, EASTLEIGH, SO53 2PW 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Council’s Tree Consultant 
(Agenda item 9) concerning an application to 1 no. Oak tree (T1)- Crown 
lift to 6m and localised crown reduction of limbs over garden by 3 metres 
for woodland at the rear of 47 Kelburn Close, Chandler’s Ford, Eastleigh, 
SO53 2PW. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That permission be GRANTED as set out in the Committee report, 
subject to conditions. 
 
(NOTE: Councillor Pragnell rejoined the meeting before the item at 20:52 
and was able to take part in debate and vote on the item.) 
 

106. PLANNING APPEALS 
 
The Head of Legal Services reported:- 
 

(a) that the following appeals had been lodged:- 
 

18 VERONA ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD, EASTLEIGH, SO53 
2BZ 

 
Appeal against the Councils’ refusal of an increase of roof ridge 
height, rear dormers and front roof lights. (H/20/88683) 
 
This was a delegated decision. 

 
140 HILTINGBURY ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD, EASTLEIGH, 
SO53 5NS 

9



6 
 

 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of a small single storey 
detached garage, cycle and bin storage. (H/20/89117) 
 
This was a delegated decision. 

 
(b) that the following appeals had been allowed:- 

 
72 THORNBURY WOOD, CHANDLERS FORD. SO53 5DQ 

 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of a two storey side extension 
and removal of existing conservatory. (H/20/88186) 
 
This was a delegated decision. 

 
(c) that the following appeals had been dismissed:- 

 
13 HEATHLANDS ROAD, CHANDLER’S FORD, SO53 1GU 

 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of the removal of part of 
current 1m fence and privet hedging as required, to be replaced by 
a 2m high fence (from ground level), join fence up to porch, as per 
plans provided. Current side access gate from driveway also to be 
replaced (with 2m to match) as per plans. This is required to make 
a safer and more secure play area for young children. (H/20/88458) 
 
This was a delegated decision. 

 
139 HILTINGBURY ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD, SO53 5NP 

 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of permission to grant consent 
to undertake work to a tree protected by a Tree Preservation Order. 
(T/19/85847) 
 
This was a delegated decision. 

 
62 BROWNHILL ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD, EASTLEIGH, SO53 
2EG 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal for the demolition of detached 
garage and erection of two storey side extension. (H/20/88152) 

 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
M6631 
 
 

10



CHANDLER’S FORD LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Wednesday 14th July 2021 

FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT 

Report of the Local Area Manager 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee: 
 
(1) Approves the recommended changes made to the Community Grant process 

(2) Approves the allocation of £570 from Developer Contributions for a wildflower 
site at Shannon Way, Chandler’s Ford 

(3) Approves the allocation of £938 from the Bench Improvement Budget for the 
installation of a replacement bench along Hursley Road, Chandler’s Ford  

(4) Approves the allocation of £680 from the Dual Bin replacement budget for the 
installation of 2 new dual waste bins, one at Lincoln Valley open space and 
one at Eagle Close, Chandler’s Ford 

(5) Approves the allocation of £40 from the Street Naming budget for the 
installation of a replacement  traffic sign at Richmond Close, Chandler’s Ford  

 
 

Summary 
 
This report contains recommendations for expenditure from the Committee’s developer 
contributions and identifies funding for provision to meet local need and to enhance the 
local area.  The Local Area Committee’s support is sought to enable their implementation. 
 
Statutory Powers 
 
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority’s general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area. 
S.106 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

 

11

Agenda Item 6



Strategic Implications  

1. The works outlined below contribute to the following strategic priorities: 

 Local First: where possible taking decisions at a local level about things which 
affect people’s lives, and using contributions from local developments for local 
projects 

 Excellent Environment for all: creating a sense of place through improved 
pathways, additional bins and air quality 

 Enabling health and wellbeing and tackling deprivation; improving community 
infrastructure and places where different people can meet and receive support 
and services. 
 

Community Grant Process 

2. At present, the Chandler’s Ford & Hiltingbury (CFH) Local Area 
Community Grant fund is open for applications all year round and any 
application is reviewed at the next Local Area Committee meeting after it 
was submitted.  For 2020/21 two applications were submitted to the CFH 
Local Area Community Grants fund and both applications totalling £980 
have been successful.  

3. The Community Grant budget per annum for Chandler’s Ford and 
Hiltingbury LAC is £2,970.  

4. History of the CFH grant spend: 

(a) 2020/21 - £980 

(b) 2019/20 - £0 

(c) 2018/19 - £1982  

5. Based on previous insight and experience of managing community grant 
schemes at Eastleigh and in other local authorities, the Local Area 
Manager believes there are 4 possible options for the Chandler’s Ford 
and Hiltingbury LAC to discuss and vote on: 

(a) The LAC keeps with the existing approach of reviewing applications as 
and when they are submitted to the CFH Working group. 

(b) The LAC opens the grant fund for applications at one point in the year, 
with a set time period for groups to apply. Then the panel would review 
all the applications in 1 meeting.  This approach is favoured by HEWEB 
and adult services at HCC with their Local Solutions Grant. 

(c) Similar to point b but open the window twice a year (e.g., in April and 
October) so community groups would have two windows within which 
to apply. 

12



(d) Close the community grant fund down and utilise the saving for other 
priority needs. 

6. If options b or c are preferred, the LAC would have to define the process 
and timelines.  Using the example of the HEWEB model the Committee 
could use the following timelines: 

(i) Start Promoting the CFH fund in early September 

(ii) Open the fund for applications in Mid-September 

(iii) Close the fund in the first week of November (fund open for 6-8 
weeks) 

(iv) Panel meet to review and assess the applications 

(v) The Panel provide a report for CFH LAC to approve 

(vi) Late November, all applicants informed of decision 

(vii) Early December public announcement and publicity of 
successful applicants 

(viii) From January EBC officers to work with successful applicants to 
capture success stories/case studies to celebrate the CFH 
community grant  

7. A recommendation to consider creating a separate smaller panel of 
Councillors to review and propose the applications to the LAC for approval 
would be needed.  The panel could consist of three Councillors, the Local 
Area Manager and the Assistant Local Area Manager.  This approach 
would free up valuable time at working group meetings.  The Local Area 
Manger would produce a report on behalf of the Panel for the LAC to 
approve the recommendations. 

8. A further recommendation would be to review the criteria of the CFH LAC 
grant.  It is recommended that only allow community groups, non-profit 
organisations and sports clubs to be eligible to apply.  Successful 
applicants can re-apply for different projects after 2 separate windows in 
order to ensure the small budget the LACs has can be fairly accessible for 
other community groups. 

9. The LAC should also consider if it wants to introduce themed rounds 
based on the needs of the local community or emerging issues. For 
example, if social isolation is a significant issue for CFH residents, the 
Committee may want to encourage applicants to develop projects which 
may address this issue.  If this approach was favoured, the Committee 
would still consider applications for other projects, however an application 
aligned to the designated themed would be favoured. 

10. If options a-c are preferred, there is a clear need to promote the 
opportunity of the CFH local grants fund and the process of how to apply, 

13



to community groups in Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury.  The Committee 
would need to work closely with the Parish who will have links to local 
community groups, venue hirers, sports clubs and uniformed groups to 
help promote the grant fund.  The Committee could also work closely with 
the Council’s Communications Team to help reach groups via social 
media and their established networks.  The web pages also need to be 
reviewed to make it easier for community groups to understand the criteria 
and how to apply.   Whilst the Council and most community grants locally 
and nationally are driving applications to an on-line process, to ensure 
accessibility and avoid digital exclusion, there is also a need to provide 
applicants with a paper-based application process. 

11. It is recommended that the Committee introduces a monitoring and 
evaluation form for the successful applicants to complete once their 
projects are up and running.  This will allow the Committee to have insight 
into how many people are benefiting from the funded projects, how the 
group ensure their project can be sustainable without reliance on further 
CFH grants; some good news stories or cases studies and even a photo.  
By taking this approach, not only does the Committee begin to understand 
what is happening within the Community, how successful these 
interventions can be and also if it is an effective and successful project 
there may be opportunity to scale it up and invest further grant money   
This approach also allows us to promote good news stories to the 
community and highlight the how the grant money is helping local people. 

12. It is therefore the recommendation that the CFH community grant scheme 
opens once a year with a smaller working group of CFH members and 
officers who will review each application and create a recommendation 
report for the LAC to approve.  A further recommendation for the 
committee would be to review the current funding application criteria, 
introduces a new monitoring and evaluation approach and increase the 
publicity of this grant fund by ensuring all community groups in CFH are 
aware of this opportunity    

Wildflowers  

13. A wildflower site has been selected from a long list suggested by local 
Councillors in early 2020. The wildflower site is situated on EBC owned 
land along Shannon Way towards the junction with Foyle Road. This 
project has been carried out by the Council’s Streetscene team.  

14. It is recommended that this Committee approves the allocation of £570, 
from the following Developer’s Contribution for this purpose: 

DC Reference Details Amount required 

F/18/84154 Doswell Projects Ltd 

Receipt date – 09/07/2019 

£570 

 

14



Bench 

15. The existing concrete bench along Hursley Road has been assessed by 
the Streetscene team and has been deemed beyond repair. A new bench 
will be installed with a Borth seat which is steel framed with five recycled 
plastic slats as standard and root fixed.  

16. The £938 cost of the bench includes the removal of the old bench, supply 
and fit of the new bench.  

17. It is recommended that £938 is allocated to this project from the Bench 
Improvement Budget which was created from Developer Contributions 
approved by CFH LAC on the 23rd March 2021. 

Dual Waste Bins 

18. The Committee has an ongoing programme for extending the coverage of 
dual waste bins and replacing worn out bins to help reduce litter across 
the local area.  

19. The location of the proposed new bins are at Lincoln Valley open space 
opposite Constantine Close and Eagle Close, Chandler’s Ford.  

20. A standard Broxap Derby 120 litre dual waste bin is used and supplied 
across the Borough. The total supply and cost of fitting for each litter bin is 
£340. There is no additional cost to bins being emptied. 

21. It is recommended that the siting of the bin be agreed in consultation with 
the Borough’s Streetscene Service.  

22. It is recommended that £680 is allocated to this project from the Dual Bin 
replacement budget which was created from Developer Contributions 
approved by CFH LAC on the 23rd March 2021. 

New traffic sign 

23. The new traffic sign along Richmond Close will replace one that has gone 
missing and can be funded by the street naming budget. The cost to 
replace this street sign is £40 and will be paid for from our street name 
plates revenue budget.  

Financial Assessment  

24. There are no identifiable financial risks attached to these proposals as this 
Committee’s budgets are sufficient to fund the recommendations. 

Risk Assessment 

25. There is some risk to consider with the above recommendations.  There 
could be a reputational risk if the process for applying to our grant scheme 
is not agreed.  If the bin replacement is not agreed, we would also need to 

15



consider the reputational risk and the public health risk of a bin not being 
installed. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

26. The Equality Act is relevant to the decisions in this report because as the 
decisions relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of 
opportunity, or fostering good relations between different people.  

27. A full Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out, 
because while there are some equalities impacts, it is not proportionate to 
carry out a full EIA. 

 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

28. None of the proposals within this report will lead to increases in 
Greenhouse Gas/CO2, or damage ecology or the environment.  

 

Conclusion 

29. The recommendations contained in this report are now submitted for 
Councillors’ final approval and are to be funded from the Local Area 
Committee’s revenue budget, revenue reserves and available developer 
contributions for the above projects.  

ROSS MCCLEAN 
LOCAL AREA MANAGER 

 
Date: 23 June 2021  
Contact Officer: Ross McClean 
Tel No: 02380 683367 
e-mail: ross.mcclean@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 0 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None.   

 

16



CHANDLER'S FORD LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE  

Wednesday 14th July 2021  

APPOINTMENTS TO REGULATORY PANELS, OTHER GROUPS 
AND OUTSIDE BODIES 

Report of the Local Area Manager 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that: 
  
(1) the nominations for 2021-22 municipal year appointments to regulatory 

panels and other groups as set out in paragraph 5 are approved; and 
(2) the proposed nominations for 2021-22 municipal year appointments to 

Outside Bodies, as set out in appendix A are approved. 
 

Summary 
 
Regulatory Panels are formal decision-making panels required to deliver the council’s 
statutory obligations. The other groups comprise those established to share information or 
manage local initiatives. Outside bodies are external organisations, including formal or 
informal partnerships, to which the Borough Council is a party, which have requested that 
the Borough Council appoint an Elected Councillor or a representative to them or to which 
the Council expects to make appointments.  

Statutory Powers 
 
Local Government Act 2000, Localism Act 2011. 

 

Strategic Implications 

1. This report relates to governance arrangements which underpin all the 
Council’s Corporate Plan objectives. 

Introduction 

2. Regulatory Panels are formal decision-making panels required to deliver the 
council statutory obligations, such as Licensing.  Other Groups comprise 
those established to share information or manage local initiatives. 

3. Outside bodies are external organisations and partnerships which have 
requested that the Borough Council appoint an Elected Councillor or a 
representative to them.  Participation in outside bodies: 

17

Agenda Item 7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 Contributes to the Borough Council’s strategic functions, priorities or 
community leadership roles; 

 Supports partnership and joint working; and 

 Enables Councillors to gain and share knowledge and expertise. 
 
4. All Councillors are eligible to be appointed as representatives of the Borough 

Council on these groups.  Councillors and staff appointed must respond to all 
reasonable requests for information about the work of the outside body and 
their participation in it. 

Proposal 

5. This Committee is responsible for making Councillor appointments to a 
number of Regulatory Panels and other groups. The following nominations 
have been made for Councillor representatives for the municipal year 21-22 
and it is recommended that these are approved as follows. 

Regulatory Panels Councillor nominations for 21-22 

Licensing Appeals 

 

All Members of the Committee to be 
appointed to a pool from which any 
three can be selected. 

Other Groups  

Eastleigh Borough Council/Test 
Valley Liaison Group 

Councillor Broadhurst 

Councillor Grajewski 

 

6. This Committee is also responsible for making Councillor appointments to 
Outside Bodies within the Chandler’s Ford Local Area. A list of outside bodies 
to which the Local Councillors makes appointments to and the recommended 
nominees can be found at Appendix A. 

Financial Implications 

7. There are no financial implications associated with this decision. 

Risk Assessment 

8. Councillors must consider the implications and responsibilities of being 
involved with outside bodies as they must:  

 Continue to comply with the Borough Council’s Code of Conduct when 
they are acting as a representative of the Council.  

 Comply with the code of conduct of the outside body they are appointed to 
if one exists.  

 Declare a personal interest in any business of the Borough Council where 
it relates to a body, they are appointed to by the Borough Council.   

18



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
9. All Councillors are recommended to make sure that when they take up their 

appointment with the outside body they have access to the key documents 
regulating the organisation such as its Constitution or terms of reference to 
ensure they are aware of what the body can and cannot do, and receive a 
briefing on the body or their role within it if necessary.  

10. If Councillor appointments are not made to all the outside bodies there is a 
risk that this could hinder the Borough Council in contributing to and 
participating in stakeholder and community activities, and not develop the 
external facing role of Councillors. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

11. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because it is 
making an appointment outside bodies. Equality and diversity will be 
considered as part of the work of these bodies. 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

12. Councillors travelling to meetings via unsustainable means could represent an 
increase in greenhouse gases but some of this will be offset during social 
distancing measures as many meetings are postponed or held virtually.  
Councillors are encouraged to travel sustainably where possible and do not 
receive paper copies of agendas. 

Conclusion 

13. That the appointments to the Regulatory Panels, Other Groups and Outside 
Bodies should approved for the 2021/22 municipal year. 

ROSS MCCLEAN 
LOCAL AREA MANAGER 

 
Date: 23 June 2021 
Contact Officer: Ross McClean  
Tel No: 02380 683367 
e-mail: ross.mcclean@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 1 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None. 
 

19



This page is intentionally left blank



APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2021/22 

 

Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 
 

Name of Organisation: CHANDLER'S FORD COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION 

Proposed 2021/22 

Representative(s): 

Cllr D Pragnell 

Contact Officer: Ross McClean 

Committee: Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 

Terms of reference  

and objectives of 

organisation: 

To promote the benefit on the inhabitants of Chandler's Ford 
and the neighbourhood, to advance education, to provide 
facilities in the interests of social welfare, recreation and 
leisure and to improve, maintain and manage the affairs of the 
Community Centre. 

Key areas of interest and 

topical Issues for the 

organisation: 

To provide facilities for and encourage members of the 
Association to participate in any or all of the following 
activities:-  whist, bridge, table tennis, music appreciation, 
Scrabble, social activities, dressmaking, play reading, 
sequence dancing and rambling.  To provide facilities for 
affiliated bodies to hold their meetings and activities.  To 
provide a source of income for the Association by the letting of 
the facilities of the Community Centre. 

No of meetings per year: 

 
Decided at the AGM. 

Usual time of meeting(s): 
 
Meetings are  held at the Community 
Centre and start at 7.00 pm unless 
otherwise advised.  Meetings are split 
between Council and an Executive 
Committee 

Normal amount of 

notice given of 

meeting(s): 
 

Desired skills, qualities, 

knowledge or experience 

Members should have: 

No particular skills required. 

Details of any training 

provided: 

None. 

Details of anticipated 

workload: 

eg will member attend 

meeting only or be 

involved in other work?  

No particular workload envisaged.  The member would attend 
Council and Executive Committee meetings and would 
hopefully provide the link between us and the E.C.C. should 
one be required. 

Name and address of 

contact for organisation: 

Mr G Partridge   
Chairman 
Chandler's Ford Community Association 
Community Centre 
Hursley Road   Chandler's Ford SO53 2FT 

21



APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2021/22 

 

Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 
 

Name of Organisation: HILTINGBURY COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION 

Proposed 2021/22 

Representative(s): 

Cllr J Duguid 

Contact Officer: Ross McClean 

Committee: Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 

Terms of reference  

and objectives of 

organisation: 

To build and manage a new community centre for the benefit 
of local residents.  The Association is a non political 
organisation and it is important that it remains independent 
and impartial to issues of race, religion, politics and all other 
forms of bias. 

Key areas of interest and 

topical Issues for the 

organisation: 

To provide a new youth facility and range of social, sport and 
recreational and educational activities for all ages. 

No of meetings per year: 

 
Decided at the AGM. 

Usual time of meeting(s): 
 
Last Tuesday of every other month 

Normal amount of 

notice given of 

meeting(s): 
 

Desired skills, qualities, 

knowledge or experience 

Members should have: 

No particular skills required, but there is a need for non-
political impartiality. 

Details of any training 

provided: 

None 

Details of anticipated 

workload: 

eg will member attend 

meeting only or be 

involved in other work?  

Member would act as a link between the Community 
Association and the Council. 

Name and address of 

contact for organisation: 

Secretary 
Hiltingbury Community Association 
The Hilt, Hiltingbury Recreation Ground 
Hiltingbury Road, Chandler's Ford 
Hampshire SO53 5NP 

22



APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2021/22 

 

Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 
 

Name of Organisation: NORTH MILLERS DALE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION 

Proposed 2021/22 

Representative(s): 

Mrs Pamela Holden-Brown 

Contact Officer: Ross McClean 

Committee: Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 

Terms of reference  

and objectives of 

organisation: 

The Committee should have 6 Members - 3 from Eastleigh 
Baptist Church, 1 from the Council and 2 from a Residents 
Association.  The objective is to supervise letting 
arrangements when not used by the Church's sub-tenant for a 
kindergarten. 

Key areas of interest and 

topical Issues for the 

organisation: 

Adequate availability/opportunity for local community and 
private use. 

No of meetings per year: 

 
3 or 4 

Usual time of meeting(s): 
 
8.00  pm 

Normal amount of 

notice given of 

meeting(s): 
 
2/3 weeks 

Desired skills, qualities, 

knowledge or experience 

Members should have: 

Ability to mediate.  Some knowledge of running a public hall an 
advantage. 

Details of any training 

provided: 

 

Details of anticipated 

workload: 

eg will member attend 

meeting only or be 

involved in other work?  

Possibly. 

Name and address of 

contact for organisation: 

Mrs P Holden-Brown 
North Millers Dale Community Association 
8 Weavers Place 
Chandler's Ford 
SO53 1TU    

 

23



This page is intentionally left blank



CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA 
COMMITTEE  

Wednesday, 14 July 2021  

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY TRAFFIC REGULATION 
ORDER (TRO) REPORT 

Report of the Trainee Highways Engineer 

 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that the Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 
approve the implementation of:  
 
(1) “No waiting at any time” restrictions on Trafalgar Close; 

(2) “No waiting at any time on verge” restrictions on Walnut Close, Heathfield 
Road and Heathfield Close as advertised; 

(3) “No waiting at any time” restrictions on Reliant Close as amended; 

(4) An amendment to the provisions of the Borough of Eastleigh (Chandlers Ford 
and Hiltingbury) Consolidation Order 2016 (as amended) such that up to six 
Disabled Persons’ Parking bays per road can be introduced as required in the 
following roads:  Ashdown Road, Avon Green, Chalvington Road, Charnwood 
Close, Cumberland Avenue, Hillcrest Avenue, Hiltingbury Road, Kerry Close, 
Kingsway, Merrieleas Drive, Milford Gardens, Pantheon Road, Porteous 
Crescent, Purkess Close, Ribble Close, Saxon Walk, Shaftesbury Avenue, 
Steele Close, Tadburn Close, Warren Avenue 

 

Summary 
 
The proposal is to implement waiting restrictions to enable obstruction-free access to a 
number of roads, and in addition prevent obstruction of sight lines in order to maintain road 
safety. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004. 

Legal Agreements 
 
Agency Agreement dated 10 September 2019 between Hampshire County Council and 
Eastleigh Borough Council. 

25

Agenda Item 8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 

Strategic Implications  

1. This report addresses a number of the strategic objectives: Tackling           
Congestion and associated pollution and helping to create an Excellent 
Environment for All. 

Introduction 

2. The changes proposed for Trafalgar Close, Reliant Close, Walnut Close, 
Heathfield Road and Heathfield Close address a number of concerns raised 
by residents and Councillors. These are: verge and footway parking on 
Walnut Close, Heathfield Road and Heathfield Close, and access issues for 
HGVs on Reliant Close and Trafalgar Close within the Chandler’s Ford 
Industrial Estate.  

The changes proposed for the disabled person’s parking bays (DPBs) is to 
facilitate greater flexibility for installing or removing additional bays. 
Consultation will still be undertaken with those directly affected by DPB 
proposals. 

Consultation 

3. The formal Traffic Regulation Order consultation was advertised in the 
Hampshire Independent newspaper, on the Eastleigh Borough Council (EBC) 
website, the Hampshire County Council (HCC) Public Notices Portal and on 
public notices placed throughout affected areas on 19th February 2021. 
Properties adjacent to the proposed measures have also been notified by 
hand delivered letter. Plans showing the proposals are in Appendix 1. 

4. Summary of Comments 

This section summarises the twenty responses received from residents and 
provides the engineer’s response to the points raised. The Committee is 
asked to consider the comments received, in order to inform their decision on 
the implementation, or otherwise, of the Traffic Regulation Order. 

The full text of the representations can be found in Appendix 2 (personal data 
is redacted).  
 

Trafalgar Close 

No comments were received on this proposal; therefore it is recommended 
that the Committee approves the implementation of this restriction as 
advertised. 
 

Reliant Close 

26



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Comments  Response 

One objection was received from the 
occupier of Unit 5 that the proposed 
restrictions on Reliant Close did not 
extend far enough to allow HGVs to 
reverse into the premises and raised 
concern that cars parks on the 
section where ‘no waiting’ 
restrictions are advertised to be 
removed (near the junction), would 
force HGVs to exit Reliant Close on 
the wrong side of the road, which 
the objector feels would be 
dangerous. 

A further Public Notice was posted 
on street and delivered to properties 
within Reliant Close on 12th April 
2021.  This proposed to extend the 
proposed “no waiting at any time” 
restrictions approximately 15 metres 
further north-west, which would 
resolve the objection relating to HGV 
turning movements. It is felt that the 
removal of a short section of “no 
waiting at any time” restriction on the 
north-east side will go some way to 
replacing the kerbside parking which 
would be lost on the south side of 
Reliant Close, whilst not unduly 
hampering vehicle movements in this 
quiet cul-de-sac. Engineers will 
continue to monitor the affect 
following implementation if approved. 
No comments were received on this 
item from the second Public Notice.   

 

Walnut Close, Heathfield Road and Heathfield Close 

Comments  Response 

Five residents have written in to 
express their support for this 
proposal. 

The comments of support are noted. 

One resident wrote requesting 
clarification, this has since been 
given, the letter did not express 
support or objection to the proposal. 

Resolved.  

 

Disabled bays (various roads) 

Comments  Response 

Fourteen comments were received 
objecting to the imposition of up to 6 
disabled bays on roads contained in 
the proposed Order.  

There are no current proposals to 
install any new Disabled persons’ 
parking bays (DPBs).  The proposal in 
question is to amend the existing TRO 
in such a way to enable the Council to 
install up to six DPBs in a road, as 

27



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

required for disabled residents, 
without having to go through a TRO 
process each time.  This would make 
the process of installing and removing 
DPBs much quicker and more flexible.  
Residents directly affected by 
proposed DPBs would still be 
consulted.   

 

Financial Implications 

5. The costs of the TRO and associated road markings are funded from the core 
TRO Programme budget as part of the “Various roads” allocations, at a cost of 
approximately £3000. 

 

Risk Assessment 

6. The proposals raised in this Order have come to light because of concerns 
about obstructive parking and parking on verges causing damage.  The risk of 
not introducing the restrictions is that obstructive parking in Reliant Close and 
Trafalgar Close would continue to impact on HGVs serving local businesses, 
and parking on the verge in Heathfield Road, Heathfield Close and Walnut 
Close would continue to risk damaging the verge and kerbs and be unsightly.  

 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

7. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
relates to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, 
between different people in the following ways: the measures include 
preventing parking across pedestrian accesses and helping to keep footways 
clear. This will assist all pedestrians particularly the elderly, disabled and 
parents with pushchairs and prams. The Equality Impact Assessment is in 
Appendix 3. 

 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

8. These measures are unlikely to increase pollution but may help to lower 
Greenhouse Gas/CO2 by reducing the likelihood of congestion (drivers held 
up attempting to pass poorly parked vehicles). There is a benefit to 
biodiversity and ecology by protecting verges. 

 

28



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Conclusion 

The proposed measures will facilitate traffic movement, access to industrial 
premises and reduce damage to verges. It is recommended that the 
committee authorises the making and implementation of the Order to 
introduce waiting restrictions in Trafalgar Close, Walnut Close, Heathfield 
Road and Heathfield Close as advertised and in Reliant Close as amended, 
and to . 
 

DEBBIE DEBRECENI 
TRAINEE HIGHWAYS ENGINEER 

 
Date: 17 May 2021 
Contact Officer: Debbie Debreceni  
Tel No:  
e-mail: Debbie.Debreceni@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 3 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None  

 

 

29



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 – Drawings showing proposed restrictions 

Reliant Close as advertised

 

31



 

Reliant Close as amended 

 

 

32



Walnut Close, Heathfield Road and Heathfield Close as advertised

 33



Trafalgar Close as advertised 

 

34



Appendix 2 

Representations 

 

Reliant Close 

1. We have received notification of the changes, and have concerns. We are the business in 
Unit 5, which is the nearest to the changes. We had requested the changes to allow truck 
access to our property. 
Currently some cars park in the area we need to allow a truck to correctly turn in. I have 
attached the swept path information from the architects at the item the building and planning 
was made. This shows we need longer than you have proposed. Additionally I see there is 
due to be waiting allowed on the area between our gate and the junction the school lane. 
This new waiting zone is the only way we sometimes have a chance to get a truck into, so 
adding this will worsen the situation. Also trucks entering from this direction mean we 
cannot use our central parking spaces.  Reliant close has lots of articulated trucks using it 
for British pepper and spice, and also Unit 4 is a logistics warehouse. With cars parks on 
the part near the junction, it would force these 40ft long trucks to exit reliant close on the 
wrong side of the road, which I feel would be dangerous, and also block the road for cars 
entering to close. 
Without access for our deliveries, we are forced to unload on the roadside and risk blocking 
the road for up to 1 hour, and also damages to the walkways, pavements etc. Please can 
you re look at this scheme to find an alternative solution to the one proposed. 

 

Walnut Close, Heathfield Road and Heathfield Close as advertised 

1. I fully support this and in fact would go further and suggest it is necessary to have 
prescription against parking on the verges throughout Hiltingbury where there is a soft 
verge, e.g. grass. So often you see a right mess caused by tradesmen, delivery folks and 
even the residents who park on the soft verges all weathers, regardless of the damage to 
the verge. 
So a question if I may. Is such an order already in place for Nichol Road and Randall Road 
and if not when will there be one? 

2. I am just writing to say how much I favour the proposed verge and foot way parking 
restrictions proposed. 
The reckless and unsightly parking has just got worse and worse. The very attractive grass 
verges have been desecrated by parking.  
I hope this proposed action will restore the attractiveness of the verges in tome. 

3. Good idea to protect verges. 

4. ---- Hiltingbury Road has totally destroyed the verge outside their property with building 
work. Vans & huge lorries have been parking on the verge & pavement for almost a year. 
We & our next door neighbour have had to put wooden stakes in our verge to help prevent 
them from being destroyed too. I was about to contact you when I received your letter, so I 
wholeheartedly support this. Are these residents going to have to make good the mess 
they've made? 

5. I would like to say that this is a great initiative and long overdue and I fully support it. I will 
register my support via the comments form via the Council website.  
I just wanted to confirm what the term “waiting” means and does this include delivery 
drivers. Due to the lockdown, the number of delivery vans has increased dramatically and 
they almost always bump up onto the kerb or verge to make a delivery. I would hope this 
would be included under the new restrictions as they do a lot of damage too.  

6. I have just received your letter (ref above) regarding proposed introduction of waiting and 

35



parking restrictions along Heathfield Road (amongst others). Please can you confirm that 
these restrictions will be limited to stopping parking on the grass verge and/or pavement, 
and will not add any restrictions to parking on the road itself. 

 

Disabled persons’ parking bays – various roads 

1. I'm email about the current notices of proposed disabled parking bays in the crescent. Just 
after exact locations of these. As currently parking is very much at a premium in the 
crescent already and the adding of disabled bays will increase this issue further.  
Can it be looked into please. The entrance to the crescent. where cars park on the corner 
now. On both sides of the road obstructing the view on trying to exit the crescent safely. I 
have and others I know. Have had near misses from not being about to see properly till well 
out in the road. Any other vehicles coming past or into the crescent. I have attached an 
image below highlighting where it will be good to have these double yellow lines sited. 
Furthermore, I feel the parking issues could be results by adding further parking bays in a 
bush area at the bottom and top of the crescent. These sections could be for the owners of 
the three houses which overlook them from their front windows but then that will free up 
road parking for other residence within the crescent. I have highlighted these two key areas 
in yellow on the attached drawing.  

2. Please can you send details of the proposed location of the each TRO’s on Shaftsbury Road 
and Chalvington Road, Chandler’s Ford. 
I have concerns, as already we have a number of cars that park opposite junctions which 
increases the risk of collisions due being on the wrong side of the road when turning in/out 
of junction of Symonds Close. Please register my concerns. 

3. I am writing in regards to the proposed disabled bays in Avon Green. We have 3 already 
and parking is extremely bad here so to have more disabled bays that will not be used I 
strongly oppose. Most of the houses opposite me have had driveways put in so that has 
limited even more spaces, the end houses requested to have double yellow lines so one 
house who has 4 cars can't park outside their house so they park in front of ours now when 
we don't have enough spaces. I think we need marked bays so people park properly not 
disabled bays that will not be used as people have to park on the pavement or on the grass 
as there is nowhere to park as it is. 

4. The road already has a specific large disabled space to accommodate residents with those 
needs. Currently overnight and during peak school pickup times it can often be difficult to 
park on Warren Avenue especially during non-pandemic times. This is exacerbated as many 
of the drives cannot support more than 1 car on this road, forcing many residents to use the 
street to park an additional vehicle. 
The reduction of parking slots to accommodate specific disabled spaces, especially up to 6 
on the road, would increase the parking issues already experienced which can often turn the 
road into a slalom avoiding cars parked diagonally. 

5. Clarification is required on your TRO No 8 regarding the introduction of max 6 disabled 
parking bays does this mean: 

a) You are going to install up to 6 bays per road without being requested, thus reducing 
available parking. 

b) You will only install up to 6 requested bays. 
If your answer is item a), it is very short-sighted of the council as parking is at a premium 
within the borough and will only get worse, without providing additional off-road parking item 
a is stupid. Again if item a) where will these be located? 

6. The road is at any time subject to many kerbside parked cars. Blocking areas proposed for 
'Disabled Parking' will add to current congestion further aggravating residents’ access to 
their property. 

7. There is no need for disabled parking bays in these roads. There are plenty of parking 
spaces and all the houses have driveways. Where are these disabled people going? If you 

36



put random parking spaces in these roads they will only be used if they are right outside 
where the people want to go otherwise they will park in the other spaces available. It will 
just reduce the parking for people leaving empty disabled bays. The only one in Cumberland 
Avenue is rarely used. It would be better to use the money to cut back the bushes in 
Warren Avenue so children can walk on the path instead of in the road!!! 

8. Porteous Crescent is a small area & parking is at a minimum as it is. Some properties have 
drives and/or garages so if they have disabled residents they would be parking there. I do 
not see the need to remove valuable parking spaces that are in short supply for Disabled 
Spaces that will be left empty. 

9. Warren Avenue is a small road with exceptional limited car parking spaces as is. We are 
constantly over run with parents doing school run already abandoning their vehicles due to 
lack of spaces. The residents largely one have 1 car park space driveways. There is 
absolutely no logical reason for additional disability parking spaces within an already tightly 
packed road. 

10. We have seen the notices recently posted around Porteous Crescent regarding parking 
places for disabled people.  The notices state that these spaces would be ‘implemented as 
required’.   Some residents have expressed concern, (although we all agree that should a 
disabled space be required by a resident then they should have one).   Can I ask for your 
assurance that any parking spaces for disabled will only be installed on receipt of a request 
from a resident of Porteous Crescent? 
You will be aware that parking in Porteous Crescent is definitely at a premium and can be 
very challenging at times.   The addition of random (unrequested) parking spaces for the 
disabled, for instance, would create havoc for residents! 

11. I have read the notice on the lamp post, advising that disabled bays will be positioned in 
Hillcrest Avenue, where I live. 
I have checked online, but there is no information on where the bays will be positioned. 
Please can you advise where the bays will be positioned and the reasonings for the 
positions. 

12. Hello a notice had appeared on a lamppost in Milford Gardens SO53 2HY to say disabled 
spaces are to be put in various roads in Chandlers Ford up to 6, residents are very 
concerned about this as there is not enough room for residents to park as it is. Can you let 
me know how many disabled spaces are to be allocated for Milford Gardens and where they 
are going to be. 

13. I submit the following in support of my objection to the above Traffic Regulation Order. 
When applying for a disabled bay, the Council’s criteria states “A disabled bay will only be 
provided if… There are no alternative off-street parking facilities… “The proposed site has 
for sometime been reserved as an “advisory“ disabled parking bay following the application 
made by the residents of ----- Merrieleas Drive, who had a single driveway at that time. 
The Council, should have been notified by the residents of ----- Merrieleas Drive that they 
now have availability of off-street parking facilities since last year, as alterations were carried 
out to the property, rendering parking space for more than one vehicle to park off-road, with 
adequate space available for the safe loading and unloading of a disabled passenger. The 
double driveway also allows plenty of clearance to the garage door to access a mobility 
scooter. I consider they have adequate off road parking facilities which can be used. As 
there are no other disabled residents within close vicinity who require a designated parking 
bay, I see no justification in supporting this Traffic Regulation Order. Instead, this parking 
bay would be of great benefit to all road users, as it would help alleviate the growing lack of 
safe and appropriate parking spaces; particularly for those dropping off and collecting 
children who attend the Kings Road school. The extra bay would also allow the increasing 
number of delivery vans to pull up safely, without obstructing traffic or mounting the 
pavements for drop offs. Respectfully, I would recommend a site visit by Council officials to 
observe and fully appreciate the true situation which confirms my supporting evidence. 
Thank you for your kind attention and for the opportunity to express an objection. 

14. I am writing in regard to the plan for additional disabled parking bays in Shaftesbury Avenue, 

37



Chandler’s Ford. I am a resident. I have read the TRO. I am unclear why 6 disabled parking 
bays are required in a residential road where  -nearly every house has off street parking? So 
disabled residents have their drives to use, or could apply for a disabled bay as needed.  
Can you confirm how many bays we will be getting and where? And why they are felt to be 
needed?  

 

 

38



Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA)  

 

Title of EqIA: 

The Borough of Eastleigh (Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury) 
(Amendment No 8) Order 2021 

Brief description of  
the Proposal: 

The effect of the proposal is to introduce waiting restrictions 
to facilitate access to industrial premises and reduce 
damage to verges in Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury.  The 
proposal also seeks to make the process of installing and 
removing Disabled Persons’ Parking bays quicker and more 
flexible. 

Assessment: 

For all of categories below please consider: 

1. Does this proposal eliminate unlawful discrimination? 
2. Does this proposal advance equality of opportunity between people who share 

a protected characteristic and those who do not share it?  
3. Does this proposal foster good relations between people who share a 

protected characteristic and those who do not share it? 
 

Statutory Considerations: Please highlight what impact could there be on people with 
protected characteristics.  

Age: None 

Disability: Positive impact in terms of improving access for 
wheelchairs by regulating kerbside parking, and prohibiting 
vehicles from parking on verges and footways.    

Positive impact by making the process to introduce 
Disabled Persons Parking Bays quicker and more flexible  

Gender: None 

39



Gender reassignment: None 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity: 

Positive impact in terms of improving access for pushchairs 
by regulating kerbside parking, and prohibiting vehicles 
from parking on verges and footways.    

 

Race: None 

Religion or belief: None 

Sexual Orientation: None 

Marriage and civil 
partnership: 

None 

Non statutory considerations: Please highlight what impact could there be on people 
experiencing social deprivation. 

Social deprivation: N/A 

 

What engagement or 
consultation has been 
carried out? 

Statutory public notice in local press and on street, 
letterdrop to households and commercial properties directly 
affected by proposals. 

What could reduce any 
adverse impact on 
these groups? 

N/A 

Action Plan  

40



Activity  Outcome Timeframe Person responsible 

    

    

    

 

Lead Officer: Barbara Thomas  

Manager: Toni Johnson 

Corporate Director: Andy Trayer 

Date completed: 17 May 2021 

 

41



This page is intentionally left blank



CFH – Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 14th July 2021.  
 
Application Number:  H/21/90408 
Case Officer: Dean Baker 
Received Date: 03/05/2021 
Site Address: 21 Grosvenor Road, Chandler’s Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 5BU 
Applicant: Stuart Hill 
Proposal: Raising roof height and side extension incorporating an 

integral garage to provide height and area for first floor 
accommodation following demolition of existing detached 
garage. 
 

Recommendation:  Permit 
 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from the date of this 
decision. 
 
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with the following 
plans numbered: LOC 01, SITE 01, P-F-001, P-E-001, P-SP-001, P-B-001 and EE-001.  
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (February 2019), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive approach to the 
handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever possible, a positive 
outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a timely manner. 

 
 
Report: 
 
This application has been referred to Committee because the applicant is related to a member of 
Eastleigh Borough Council Staff.   
 
Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality 
 
The application relates to a detached bungalow under a pyramid style roof with a north-south ridge 
at a height of c.5m above ground and an eaves height of c.2.4m.  The front of this rectangular plot 
faces north.  The bungalow is set back somewhat behind the line of the neighbouring properties. 

The street is characterised by a mix of detached properties in large plots, some being single storey 
forms under almost pyramidal roofs, others being extended to chalets or full two storey dwellings., 
Both neighbours are full two storey houses. There are examples of transverse ridge roofs with half 
hips and front dormers within the street and the Kingsway Character Area. 

 
Description of Application 
 

43

Agenda Item 10



Principally, the application proposes accommodation at first floor level, which includes the 
widening of the footprint across the driveway to the east by the construction of a new garage off 
the east flank.  This would enable the reconfiguring of the main roof to have a transverse ridge at 
about 7m above ground, with Suffolk hipped ends.  Eaves at the front and rear would remain 
unchanged, while at the sides, under the hips they would increase to c.4m.  Three distinct dormer 
windows under hipped and tiled roofs would be constructed in the front elevation.  These would 
serve bedrooms.  To the rear, the roof would be reconfigured to maintain the existing 2.4m eaves 
height under a hipped roof with 7m ridge running out from the transverse ridge.  This would 
encompass existing ground floor accommodation and provide a master bedroom at first floor level, 
lit by a large window in the rear gable.  Three roof lights are proposed to light and ventilate first 
floor bathrooms. 

The property would enlarge from 3 to 4 bedrooms. 

 
Relevant Planning History 
 
None 
 
Representations Received 
 
Objection from neighbour at no.19, summarised as:- increased roof height will block summer 
evening sun from part of the garden: garden will be overlooked by new first floor bedroom window 
in south (rear) elevation, taking away my privacy: concern about potential of airborne pollution 
from removal of asbestos roof to garage. 
 
Consultation Responses 
 
Chandlers Ford Parish Council - No comment received. 
 
Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site 
 

 Within Built-up Area Boundary 

 Within Established Residential Area 

 Within HRA Screening Area 
 
Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies 
 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) Saved Policies: 
 

 25.NC (Nature Conservation) 

 59.BE (Design criteria); 

 104.T (Off-highway parking); 
 
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014 
 
The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for examination in July 2014 but the 
Inspector concluded that insufficient housing was being provided for in the Plan and that it was 
unsound.  While this has not been withdrawn and remains a material consideration, it can 
therefore be considered to have extremely limited weight in the determination of this application. 
 
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036 
 
The 2016-2036 Local Plan was submitted to the Planning Inspectorate on 31st October 2018 and 
the examination hearings concluded in January 2020. The Council received the Inspector’s post-

44



Hearing advice on 1 April 2020.  The Council is progressing with modifications to the Local Plan to 
enable its adoption, anticipated in late 2020/early 2021.  Given the status of the Emerging Plan, it 
is considered that overall considerable weight can be attributed to it. The most relevant policies 
are: 
 

Development Management policies: 

 DM1 (General Development Criteria); 

 DM11 (Nature Conservation);  

 DM14 (Car Parking); 
 
Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 
 
Policy 15 – Safeguarding of Mineral Resources. 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
 
- Quality Places (November 2011); 
- Residential Parking Standards (January 2009); 
- Environmentally Sustainable Development (March 2009); 
- Biodiversity (December 2009); 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) is a 
material consideration of significant weight in the determination of planning applications. The 
National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states that (as required by 
statute) applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise and sets out a general 
presumption in favour of sustainable development unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. A deliverable 5 year supply of housing within each local authority area is required, and 
if this is not demonstrated a tilted balance in favour of the development applies. Agent of Change 
principles protect existing businesses. 
 
Three dimensions of sustainability are to be sought jointly: economic (supporting economy and 
ensuring land availability); social (providing housing, creating high quality environment with 
accessible local services); and environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing natural, 
built and historic environment) whilst local circumstances should also be taken into account, so 
that development responds to the different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in 
different areas. 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance  
 
Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the provisions and policies of the 
NPPF should be afforded weight in the consideration and determination of planning applications.  
 
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative Background 
 
Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a Local Planning Authority determining an application to 
do so in accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  
The Development Plan comprises the Saved Policies of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 
2001-2011 and the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013 (which is not applicable in this 
case).  The NPPF and the Planning Practice Guidance constitute material considerations of 
significant weight. 
 

45



Principle: 
 
The development is within the urban edge and therefore extensions are acceptable in principle 
subject to detailed considerations as below.  
 
Design and Appearance: 

Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan requires development to take full and proper account of the 
context of the site including the character and appearance of the locality and be appropriate in 
mass, scale, materials, layout, design and siting.  It also requires a high standard of landscape 
design, have a satisfactory means of access and layout for vehicles, cyclist and pedestrians, 
make provision for refuse and cycle storage and avoid unduly impacting on neighbouring uses 
through overlooking, loss of light, loss of outlook, noise and fumes. 

Many of the bungalows in this area have been extended to create first floor accommodation by 
increasing the ridge heights resulting, in some cases with large two storey rear extensions. From 
the front elevations the single storey built form has been retained.  The increase in ridge height is 
considered acceptable having regard to comparison to its neighbours. 

Overall, the extensions would be of an appropriate scale and mass respecting the host 
dwelling’s built form and neighbour amenity, therefore not resulting in overdevelopment of the 
site. 

 

 

Access, Parking and Transport: 

 

There is ample parking to the front for three cars which meets the requirement of saved policy 
104.T and the Residential Parking Standards SPD, which requires three off road parking 
spaces for a four bed dwelling. 

 

Amenity Considerations 

 

Mutual overlooking is an accepted circumstance in urban areas although in this instance the 
overlooking is to the rear garden rather than to the neighbouring property itself.  Overlooking of 
gardens is quite commonplace, particularly where the buildings have upper floor accommodation.  
It would be unusual to find property in this locality which do not experience overlooking to some 
degree.  As the neighbouring houses are two storey, they are likely to overlook the applicant’s 
garden. In this case it is considered that the development would not result in undue overlooking. 

In terms of overshadowing, it should be noted that the neighbouring property at 19 did itself 
have planning permission for a two storey rear extension within 1m of the common boundary 
and to the depth of no.21, although it appears that this permission (F/13/72171) may have 
lapsed.  The eaves of the rear roof of the application proposal would be approx.. 4m from the 
common boundary, with the roof slope gaining in distance, all of which is due west of the 
neighbours plot.  There would be no undue overshadowing of the next door house 
accommodation.  Any shadow cast over the garden would be limited to outdoor areas at certain 
times of day and year. It is considered that notwithstanding the objection received from 19 
Grosvenor Road that there would not be an unacceptable impact on the amenity of 
neighbouring properties.    

 

46



The development has been tested and complies with the guidance set out in the ‘Quality Places’ 
SPD in that there will be no unacceptable impact on the amenity of the neighbouring properties in 
terms of loss of privacy, light or outlook.  

 

Drainage and Flood Risk: 

 

The proposal is located within flood zone 1 and is therefore considered to be at the lowest risk 
of flooding. The proposals would not therefore put occupiers at risk of flooding and given the 
scale of development and its location on an existing area of hardstanding the proposal would 
not increase the risk of flooding elsewhere.  

 

Climate Change: 

National legislation and guidance, together with local policy ensure that all planning applications 
are tested for their resilience to and impact on the environment. The Climate Change and 
Environmental implications of this application and their proposed mitigations have been 
considered. Given the scale of the development there is not considered to be a significant impact 
on climate change. Energy Efficiency in relation to an extension to a dwelling would be addressed 
at the building regulations stage.  

 

Ecology and Trees: 

The proposal is not considered to result in a likely significant impact on a European Protected 
site. HRA (Habitat Regulations Assessment) screening was not required for this development 
due to its size and scale. 

 

There would be no adverse impact upon trees or other natural features worthy of retention. 

 

 
Equalities Implications: 
 
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality duty. Section149 states:- 

- A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need 
to: 

a. eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under this Act; 

b. advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 

c. foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 
When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the equality duty and in particular 
any potential impact on protected groups. It is considered that this application does not raise any 
equality implications. 
 

Conclusion 
 
The development is considered acceptable and complies with saved Policies 25.NC, 59.BE & 
104.T in that: 

47



1. The development is within the urban edge where the principle of development is 
acceptable. 

2. The design of the extension is suited to the host dwelling in terms of its form, scale and 
appearance.  

3. The development would not be an overdevelopment of the site, would retain sufficient 
amenity space and meet parking standards.  

4. The development accords with guidance set out in the ‘Quality Places’ SPD in that there will 
be no unacceptable impact on the amenity of the neighbouring properties in terms of loss of 
privacy, light or outlook.  

5. The design and layout respects the character and appearance of the locality. 

6. There will be no adverse impact upon trees or other natural features worthy of retention. 

7. There are no likely significant impacts on the SPA. 

 
 

48



 

49



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Financial Management Report
	7 Appointments to Outside Bodies, Regulatory Panels and Other Groups
	Appendix. 1 for Appointment to Outside Bodies

	8 Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) -  Various Roads in Chandler's Ford & Hiltingbury
	Appendix 1 for TRO Various Roads Chandler's Ford & Hiltingbury
	Appendix 2 for TRO Various Roads Chandler's Ford & Hiltingbury
	Appendix 3 for TRO Various Roads Chandler's Ford & Hiltingbury

	10 Planning Application - 21 Grosvenor Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 5BU

